INVITATION FOR BID

J15013

TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE SERVICE, and CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING OF THE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU`UHONUA KAULIKE)
THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII

NOTE: If this solicitation document was downloaded through the internet, each interested person must register through email, providing contact information to the listed contact person in the Judiciary Contracts & Purchasing Office. Registration is essential for you to receive any addendums or other information for this solicitation. The Judiciary shall not be responsible for any missing addenda, clarifications, attachments or other information regarding this solicitation if an offer is submitted from an incomplete solicitation document.

MAY 2014

There will be a pre bid walk thru inspection of the Air Conditioning system at the Kauai Judiciary Complex, Pu`uhonua Kaulike conducted by Mr. Dean Kuboyama, Facilities Manager. BIDDERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND.

Date & Time: May 21, 2014, 9:00 a.m.

Location: Kauai Judiciary Complex (Pu`uhonua Kaulike)

3970 Kaana Street Lihue, HI 96766

Note: Meet Mr. Kuboyama outside the main entrance to the building. He will

accompany you through security screening.

Contact Dean Kuboyama at (808) 482 - 2381 for questions and to confirm your attendance.

NOTICE TO INTERESTED PARTIES

This solicitation is provided to you for information purposes. If interested in responding to this solicitation, you may choose to submit your offer on the downloaded document **provided**. You must register your company by fax or e-mail for this specific solicitation. If you do not register your company, you will not receive addenda, if any, and your offer **may be** rejected and not considered for award.

Registration or Request for Copy of Solicitation

Submit FAX or E-MAIL to: FAX No.: (808) 538-5802

E-mail Address: Kelly.Y.Otake@courts.hawaii.gov

Provide the following information:

Name of Company •Mailing Address •Name of Contact Person

Telephone Number •FAX number •E-mail Address

Solicitation Number •Fedex (or equivalent) account number (document will be sent by U.S. Postal Service first class mail if this is not provided).

THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII INVITATION FOR BID NO. J15013

Competitive sealed bids

TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE SERVICE, and CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING FOR THE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM FOR THE FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU`UHONUA KAULIKE)

THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII

Bids will be received up to and opened at 2:00 p.m. (HST) on June 3, 2014 at

The Judiciary
Financial Services Division
Kauikeaouli Hale
1111 Alakea Street., 6th Floor
Honolulu, Hi 96813-2807

Offers received after the date and time specified above or at a location other than the location specified above will not be considered. All proposals must be made on forms obtainable at the aforesaid place or from our website (http://www4.hawaii.gov/jud/) And must be accordance with the accompanying instructions. Questions relating to this solicitation may be directed to Mr. Dean Kuboyama, Facilities Manager at Pu'uhonua Kaulike. He may be contacted at telephone (808) 482-2381 or email at Dean.E.Kuboyama@courts.hawaii.gov

/s/ Janell Kim Janell Kim Financial Services Administrator

Judiciary & SPO Website: May 13, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	I ONE SPECIFICATIONS	5
1.	1. SCOPE	5
1.3	2. JOB SITE	5
1.3	3. DESCRIPTION OF WORK	5
1.4	4. REPORTS	
1.	5. WORK SCHEDULE	
1.0	6. MAINTENANCE CHECKLIST/LOG BOOK	
1.	7. EMERGENCY SERVICE AND AUTHORIZED EXTRA WORK	
	8. EMERGENCY SERVICE PROCEDURES	
1.9	9. PARTS AND MATERIALS	
	10. ALLOWABLE COSTS FOR PARTS	
	11. CLEAN UP AND WORK PRACTICES	
	12. SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	
	I TWO A: EDDY CURRENT TESTING	
SECTION	I TWO SPECIFICATIONS CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT	18
2.		
2.		10
2.3		
2.4		
	I THREE SPECIAL PROVISIONS	
3.		
3.		
3.		
3.4		
3.		
3.0		
3.		
3. 3.		20
3.9		
_	10. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL	
_	11. SUBCONTRACTING	
_	12. SERVICE AREAS	
_	13. SERVICE AREAS	
_		
•	14. PERFORMANCE OF WORK 15. REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES	
O.		
	16. INSPECTION	
	17. WORK SCHEDULE	
3.	18. INVOICING AND PAYMENT	33
3.	19. OTHER SPECIAL PROVISIONS	33
W	age Certificate	
	andards of Conduct	
	AL FORM	00
	AL FORM	
Did F10PC	saluslification Form	38

SECTION ONE SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURNISHING MAINTENANCE SERVICE OF AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU'UHONUA KAULIKE)

1.1. SCOPE

The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, parts, tools, lubricants, refrigerants, equipment, transportation and supervision necessary for the complete maintenance, inspections and repairs to the air conditioning and ventilation system for Fifth Judicial Circuit (Pu`uhonua Kaulike) as listed herein and in accordance to these Specifications, the Special Provisions, the General Conditions, and the Procedural Requirements attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof. The Contractor shall perform routine maintenance of all air conditioning and ventilation systems within the cost of this contract.

1.2. JOB

The Contractor shall provide air conditioning and ventilation services for Pu`uhonua Kaulike, Fifth Judicial Circuit located at 3970 Kaana Street, Lihue, Hi 96766.

1.3. DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The Contractor shall repair or replace all worn, failed or doubtful components and parts to ensure satisfactory operation of the air conditioning and ventilation system. Replacement parts shall be of similar design and quality to maintain system integrity and serviceability. All parts and materials (parts less than \$1,000) shall be provided at no additional cost to the Judiciary. Parts exceeding \$1,000 in cost will be paid for by the Judiciary.

The Contractor shall perform complete maintenance and repair service, including inspections, trouble and emergency calls for all equipment included under this contract. The service shall consist of thorough maintenance work in accordance with the best commercial practice governing the maintenance of air conditioning and ventilation systems. Such service shall include regularly scheduled maintenance services as specified and shall be subject to inspection and approval by the Officer in Charge. The full service maintenance contract shall not relieve the Contractor from performing the specified scheduled maintenance services.

The Contractor shall not be responsible for repairs due to flagrant vandalism, fire, storm or related damages which can be attributed to causes beyond his control. However, the Contractor shall be responsible for such repairs if the damages are caused by the Contractor's failure to properly maintain and repair the equipment, e.g., should failure to reinstall protective covers causes the motor to burn during rainstorm.

The Contractor shall be responsible for all portions of the air conditioning and ventilating system including the chemical water treatment. Labor, to replace parts and supplies provided by Contractor as part of this maintenance agreement, shall be provided at no extra charge, except as noted.

All services performed by the Contractor shall include applicable items listed, but not be limited to the following:

A. AIR HANDLING UNITS/FAN COIL UNITS

Monthly

J15013 -5-

- 1. Clear and clean all drip pans and flush all related condensate drain lines with nitrogen or other applicable means. (Contractor may be liable for water damages due to clogged drains). Install pan tablets if necessary to control algae.
- 2. Change all disposable air filters including automatic filters <u>as required</u>, **but at least once every two months <u>or sooner if needed</u>:** use 2" pleated, 30% efficiency type FARR 30/30 or equal.
- Wash permanent type filters with an approved detergent and spray coat with an approved filter treatment solution. Replace deteriorated permanent type filters which cannot be cleaned.
- 4. Lubricate and oil all fan and motor bearings, and connections of dampers and vanes and check controls to insure proper operation.
- 5. Check all drives for wear; adjust belt tension. Replace belt as required.
- 6. Check UV lights and CO2 monitor systems; repair/replace items as required to keep systems operating properly. Recalibrate the CO2 monitor system **quarterly**.
- 7. Check back-draft and motor-controlled dampers and operators for proper operation; lubricate linkage for free movement.
- 8. Operate equipment to check for proper operation, unusual noise and vibration. Adjust, repair and correct all discrepancies before certifying service report.

Semi-Annually

- 1. Adjust alignment of bearings and sheaves; lubricate fan and motor bearings. Replace worn or noisy bearings or sheaves.
- Wash cooling coils and clean all dirt accumulation using water washer, steam or surfactant chemical coil cleaner (alkali or acidic cleaners not allowed) solution as necessary. This service only required annually for units equipped with properly working UV lights.
- 3. Remove and wash all supply and return air grilles, register and diffusers and exterior surfaces of all related air conditioning equipment. Clean fresh air intake grille and damper, and repair/replace deteriorated bird/insect screens.
- 4. Adjust, repair and correct all discrepancies before certifying service report.

Annually

- 1. Check pressure drop and temperature differential across cooling coils and log readings. Clean strainers, check vents and drains on chill water coils.
- 2. Secure all loose housing, seal leaks and touch-up paint after cleaning all rust.
- 3. Replace any UV light tubes that have not been replaced since the last annual service.
- 4. Check condition of insulation; repair/reinsulate properly & immediately, including

J15013 -6-

<u>anytime</u> disturbing of insulation is required to make repairs, or <u>upon</u> discovery or notification.

- 5. Calibrate electric temperature controls.
- 6. Clean all fan wheels & interior housings.
- 7. Adjust, repair and correct all discrepancies before certifying service report.

B. CENTRIFUGAL/SCREW CHILLER

Monthly

- 1. Check and record entering and leaving chiller water and condenser water temperatures and pressures in maintenance log.
- 2. Check and record head pressure, oil pressure and system pressure; check oil log.
- 3. Check oil pump operation; service purge compressor and purge system.
- 4. Check for refrigerant and oil leakage; recharge system.
- 5. Adjust chilled water temperature setting for seasonal changes.
- 6. Check/adjust/calibrate the oxygen/refrigerant monitor and alarm system.
- 7. Correct and report all discrepancies. Certify monthly performance of chiller operation and maintenance service.

Quarterly Service

- 1. Check chiller response at various load conditions for proper operation and calibration of capacity control system.
- 2. Check safety controls and purge controls; record settings.
- 3. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify performance of quarterly service.

Semi-Annual Service

- 1. Remove heads of condenser and internally brush tubes at the same time cooling tower is cleaned; coordinate with officer in charge/contract administrator.
- 2. Perform pressure tests to detect refrigerant leaks.
- Check condition of insulation; repair/reinsulate properly and immediately, including any time disturbing of insulation is required to make repairs, or <u>upon</u> discovery or notification.
- 4. Correct and report all discrepancies, certify performance of semi-annual service.

Annual Service

J15013 -7-

- 1. Have chiller and purge compressor oil **analyzed and <u>submit written report</u>**. (Continuous oil monitoring system may be used in lieu of testing). This written report to is ti include a copy of the analysis, notations of what these reports indicate, and recommendations for action.
- 2. Replace oil cooler filter cartridge; **change oil** if recommended by analysis and per manufacturer's recommendations. This cost is to be calculated and borne by the contractor.
- 3. Check refrigerant; replace filter-drier.
- 4. Inspect purge compressor and drum; clean and replace wearing parts.
- 5. Electronic leak test entire system and repair leaks.
 - 6. Megger test chiller and oil pump motors; check relay contacts and electrical connections.
 - 7. Test/operate control switches; unloaders, safeties; calibrate and record settings.
 - 8. Clean and remove all dust and foreign matter. Clean all rust spots and scratches and touch up paint with matching color, **immediately upon discovery** or **notification**.
 - 9. Have the self-contained breathing apparatus equipment tested and recertified where they are provided.
 - 10. Report and correct all discrepancies, and certify performance of annual service. Submit maintenance report in writing to Contract Administrator.

C. COOLING TOWER

Monthly

- 1. Check and adjust water make-up float valve and bleed rate.
- 2. Check general condition of tower interior and water distribution pattern.
- 3. Check and lubricate motor and fan bearings.
- 4. Check all drives and pulleys for wear; adjust belt tension. Replace belts or sheaves as required.
- 5. Remove foreign materials from inside the tower, vacuum basin residue as required.
- 6. Check for leaks, patch, correct or repair **immediately upon discovery** or **notification**.
- 7. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify performance of monthly maintenance service.

Semi-Annual Service

J15013 -8-

- 1. Drain, clean and flush tower; coordinate with water treatment contractor and the officer-in-charge.
- 2. Clean condenser suction screen, drift eliminators, spray nozzles and vacuum basin residue.
- 3. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify semi-annual cleaning of towers.

D.VENTILATING FANS (EXHAUST AND SUPPLY)

Quarterly

- 1. Check back-draft and motor-controlled dampers and operators for proper operation; lubricate linkage for free movement.
- 2. Lubricate fan motors and bearings.
- 3. Check belt wear and tension; adjust or replace as needed.
- 4. Check sheaves for wear, replace as needed.
- 5. Check fan collar, bearings and shaft for wear, repair or replace as needed.
- 6. Replace air filters where installed.
- 7. Check CO monitor systems and repair/replace items as required to keep systems operating properly. Recalibrate the CO monitor system <u>quarterly</u>.
- 8. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify quarterly report.

Semi-Annual

- 1. Check and clean fan wheels and housings of dust, dirt and grease.
- 2. Remove and wash all intake/exhaust or supply grilles, registers, louvers and dampers; repair/replace deteriorated bird/insect screens.
- 3. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify semi-annual cleaning.

E. PUMPS

Monthly Service

- 1. Lubricate and check pump and motor bearings including pump couplings for abnormal temperature and unusual noise or vibration and repair or replace as needed.
- 2. Check packing glands and seals for excessive leakage. Adjust, tighten or repair or replace as required.
- 3. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify monthly servicing of pumps.

Semi-Annual Service

J15013 -9-

- 1. Remove and clean strainer for all condenser pumps after tower cleaning.
- 2. Check and blow down strainer to chilled water pumps. Remove and clean strainer if excessive debris is noted.
- 3. Check condition of insulation; repair/reinsulate **properly & immediately**, including **any time** disturbance of insulation is required to make repairs, or **upon discovery** or **notification**.
- 4. Log suction and discharge pressures for all pumps.
- 5. Clean and remove all dust and foreign matter. Clean all rust spots and scratches and touch up paint with matching color, **immediately upon discovery** or **notification**.
- 6. Check motor coupling for alignment; mounting bolts are secure.
- 7. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify semi-annual service of pumps.

F.CONTROLS

Monthly

- 1. Check thermostats, controllers, smoke detectors, control dampers, control valves and actuators for proper operation; lubricate, adjust and recalibrate as required.
- 2. Check control dampers for tight closing, bent blades, defective linkage, etc. and repair as required.
- 3. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify monthly servicing of controls.

Annually

- 1. Inspect valve assemblies, check and adjust.
- 2. Repair or replace worn parts or complete controls with new or reconditioned equivalents, as conditions warrant.
- 3. Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify annual servicing of controls.

G.VARIABLE SPEED DRIVES

Quarterly Service

- 1. Check operation of drive.
- 2. Check operation of interior fan.
- 3. Clean all contacts. Tighten all loose connections.
- Correct and report all discrepancies, and certify quarterly service of variable speed drives.

J15013 -10-

H. CLEANING OF MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ROOMS AND EXHAUST FAN ROOMS

Monthly

- 1. Vacuum or wipe clean all equipment surfaces and all related appurtenance.
- 2. Vacuum clean or sweep complete floor and platform areas. **DO NOT** wet floors and platform area where there is no waterproofing.
- 3. Wet wash complete floor area with tap water where allowed. **CAUTION**: **DO NOT** splash water onto the electrical and mechanical equipment.
- 4. Remove all used, deteriorated, replaced, discarded parts and related debris.
- 5. Notify Officer-in-Charge of any dangerous conditions, improper storage of furniture, materials and supplies which impacts your work within rooms and enclosures, including vandalism.

I.FRESH AIR INTAKE GRILL

Semi-Annually

- 1. Grill shall be cleaned with brush, vacuum or if heavily sooted, the grill shall be cleaned with approved detergent and rinsed with tap water.
- Paint to match all corroded or rusted grills.

J. VALVES AND CONDENSER WATER LINES, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPORTS

- 1. The Contractor shall exercise all equipment shut-off valves for proper operations and tightness. Replace stuck valves if they are inoperable.
- Wire brush and remove rust from pipe, equipment and support surfaces, then prime and paint rust to prevent further rusting. Perform work immediately <u>upon</u> discovery or notification.

K. CONDENSER AND CHILLED WATER TREATMENT (Chemical Water Treatment)

- Contractor may subcontract for the chemical and water treatment service, which shall be provided under this contract by a qualified water treatment company experienced in the business of servicing air conditioning chilled water systems. (See attached "Specifications for Chemical Water Treatment Service of Air Conditioning Systems" and refer to the portion of the SPECIAL PROVISIONS regarding SUBCONTRACTING.)
- 2. Log and date and certify maintenance service actions in a "Chemical Treatment Log Book" (e.g. monthly water analysis, equipment maintenance and repair, chemical feed set points and adjustments made, and notate amount of each chemical used an on-hand.)

L. CHILLER WASTE OIL DISPOSAL

1. The Contractor shall dispose of the waste oil yearly, at the same time (within one week), after all the annual services and overhauls have been performed by the

J15013 -11-

Contractor on the multiple centrifugal/screw chillers and as indicated herein. The chiller waste oil shall be considered as hazardous waste and be properly disposed of accordingly. A manifest report shall be provided.

- 2. The Contractor or their disposal agency shall be registered with and have a United States of America, Environmental Protection Agency (US-EPA) Identification number, and be licensed in the State of Hawaii. The Contractor, and any other entities they involve, shall be familiar with and follow requirements of US-EPA, US-DOT, State of Hawaii and Local Authorities, as appropriate, regarding the performance of the waste oil disposal work. In addition, all entities involved with and have a US-EPA Identification number, and be licensed in the State of Hawaii, if required.
- 3. The Contractor, after having performed the 10,000 hour overhaul and annual services to the chillers including oil change, shall store the used (waste) oil in suitable (no leak), tagged and identified containers within the chiller room awaiting pick-up and disposal. Identification shall include type of waste and approximate amount to the nearest gallon. The Contractor shall collect all waste oil containers identified as chiller waste oil and transport them in US-DOT approved shipping/transportation containers. The Contractor shall make all required arrangements for shipping/transportation with appropriate paperwork and safely ship/transport the containers to a US-EPA approved hazardous waste disposal site. Also, the Contractor shall legally dispose of the existing storage containers. After the disposal of the waste oil, the Contractor shall provide official copies of the US-EPA Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest to the Judiciary.
- 4. The Contractor, and any other involved entities, shall be responsible for appropriately cleaning up any spills which may occur during the entire performance of the disposal work, including shipping/transporting and shall support, protest and save harmless the Judiciary in regard to this work.

1.4. REPORTS

Prior to the commencement with the work on the contract, the Contractor shall submit to Officer-in-Charge his monthly inspection schedule for the period of the contract. The Contractor shall also maintain a record, documents and other evidence pertaining to the maintenance, repair and costs for the air conditioning system to the extent and in such detail as will properly and adequately reflect the past maintenance history and cost (labor, materials, parts and equipment). The Contractor shall also submit an updated inventory of all equipment during the contract period.

All Contractor service reports, whether regular maintenance, trouble call, emergency or authorized extra work, shall be filled out <u>properly and completely at the time of service and shall include</u>: day and date, time started, time completed, service performed, materials used and costs, control number, service person, and shall be <u>certified</u> by the contractor and signed/received by the Officer-in-Charge.

1.5. WORK SCHEDULE

The Contractor shall perform maintenance, inspection and repair services to the air conditioning and ventilation system, all in accordance with the best commercial practices and as required to provide assurance of safety and operational reliability.

J15013 -12-

Within seven (7) days after the award of this contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Officer-in-Charge, in writing, a proposed schedule on inspection, preventive maintenance, maintenance checklist and maintenance record system, all in sufficient detail to show its adequacy in carrying out the terms of this contract. Contractor shall include forms and checklists to be used by his maintenance personnel in the performance of the contract requirements for approval by the Judiciary. The Judiciary reserves the right to provide the Contractor with preprinted maintenance worksheets to be completed by the Contractor.

All maintenance tasks described herein shall be performed between the hours of 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. on normal working days, Monday through Friday, excluding State holidays and/or on days that work is not officially scheduled. All service reports shall be signed off by the Officer in Charge.

- Monthly maintenance tasks shall be performed in the last week of the month, normal working days (Monday through Friday) or as coordinated by the Officer-in-Charge. Monthly service shall be performed <u>not less than</u> 3 weeks <u>or more than</u> 5 weeks from last service period.
- 2. Quarterly maintenance tasks shall be performed in January, April, July, and October, normal working days (Monday through Friday) or as coordinated by the Officer-in-Charge.
- 3. Semi-annual maintenance tasks shall be performed in March and September, normal working days (Monday through Friday) or as coordinated by the Officer-in-Charge.
- 4. Annual maintenance tasks shall be performed in December, normal working days (Monday through Friday) or as coordinated by the Officer-in-Charge.
- 5. The Contractor is required to schedule his work to accommodate courtroom times to prevent court disruption and/or may be required to return at a more appropriate time at no additional cost to the Judiciary, but work <u>must be</u> performed and not missed.
- 6. In the event the Judiciary requests the Contractor to perform maintenance tasks on the weekend or after normal working hours, the Judiciary shall compensate the Contractor only for one half (1/2) the hourly rate provided by the bidder on the offer form for its employees which includes applicable fringe benefits, mileage, travel, and tax costs. The Contractor shall be responsible for all other costs as if the work was performed during normal working hours.
- 7. All work performed shall be subject to random periodic inspection by the Officer-in-Charge or a representative of the Judiciary. The Judiciary reserves the right to have the Contractor present at such inspections to be scheduled by the Judiciary periodically.
- 8. The Officer-in-Charge or a representative of the Judiciary shall be informed by the contractor of all deficiencies found by the. The Contractor shall correct all deficiencies within seven (7) days. If deficiencies are not corrected within the seven-day period, the provision on liquidated damages will be applicable.

1.6. MAINTENANCE CHECKLIST/LOG BOOK

J15013 -13-

The Contractor shall prepare and maintain a maintenance checklist/log book and post a checklist/log book on each unit as described herein. The checklist/log book shall include the date maintenance was performed, the name of the mechanic who performed said maintenance and the type of repair work performed on the unit, if any. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to maintain the checklist/log book by recording the above data after each scheduled maintenance and emergency repairs, and have the checklist/log book available for inspection.

At the end of each contract period the Contractor shall submit with their final invoice, completed checklist/log books of all air conditioning and ventilating equipment. **No payment will be made until all completed checklist/log books are received.**

1.7. EMERGENCY SERVICE AND AUTHORIZED EXTRA WORK

Emergency service required between regularly scheduled maintenance calls shall be rendered within two (2) hours after the Contractor is notified, non-work days excluded. Emergency service required during non-work days shall be rendered within eight (8) hours. One hour of labor for emergency service shall be provided at no additional charge to the Judiciary except as noted. Labor, to replace parts and supplies provided by Contractor as part of this maintenance agreement, shall be provided at no extra charge, except as noted.

The Contractor shall provide copies of the past maintenance history and cost upon request by the)Officer-in-Charge. As repair jobs are completed, Contractor must notify the Officer-in-Charge daily and not longer than weekly of the status of repairs and estimated completion time. When "chargeable" emergency services or authorized extra work are necessary, the Contractor shall promptly provide the Officer-in-Charge within 24 hours of the notification of the emergency repair trouble call, an estimated cost and shall receive advance approval from him prior to performing any such work over three (3) hours labor or \$300.00 total cost.

The Judiciary reserves the right to have maintenance or repair tasks performed on weekends or after normal operating hours. Whenever the Judiciary exercises this right, the Judiciary shall compensate the Contractor only for the difference between his normal labor rate and overtime labor rate.

A written quotation shall follow within 48 hours of any "chargeable" emergency services performed, containing the following minimum information:

- 1. Description and breakdown of material, parts and labor costs.
- 2. Extra costs such as air freight.
- 3. Completion date.

Contractor shall bill such "chargeable" emergency services or authorized extra work separately from the contract price. Unless the Contractor is given a separate purchase order authorizing him to make such repairs, the Judiciary shall not be held responsible for payment of any such work performed by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall notify the Judiciary when parts are not readily available to accomplish the repairs. The Judiciary reserves the right to have the parts sent by air freight at the expense of the Judiciary.

J15013 -14-

1.8 EMERGENCY SERVICE PROCEDURES

- 1. Facility Manager informs Officer-in-Charge of air conditioner problems.
- 2. Officer-in Charge notifies Contractor of problem and assigns control number.
- 3. Contractor shall report to Officer-in-Charge that day or call the following day and report the status of the emergency call by control number.
 - a. If completed, Contractor shall inform Officer-in-Charge of their evaluation of the trouble and the action taken to remedy the situation.
 - b. If not completed, Contractor shall inform Officer-in-Charge of the problem and provide an estimated completion date.
- 4. Once a week the Contractor shall report on all outstanding emergency calls and their estimated completion date and/or action pending.
- 5. Unauthorized extra work performed on a trouble or emergency call may not be compensated as determined by the Officer-in-Charge.

1.9. PARTS AND MATERIALS

The Contractor shall provide filters, fan belts and pan tabs as part of this maintenance contract. The Contractor shall restore to serviceability all parts that are found to cost less to restore than to replace with a new part. Where parts are worn out and cannot be restored, the Contractor shall replace these parts with new parts. Only new, standard parts manufactured by the maker of each unit or parts of equal quality shall be used. All parts and materials (parts less than \$1,000) shall be provided at no additional cost to the Judiciary. Parts exceeding \$1,000 in cost will be paid for by the Judiciary.

The Contractor shall maintain a supply of parts and materials that are required for normal repairs of the air conditioning units. The Contractor shall notify the Judiciary whenever parts are not locally available to accomplish the repairs. The Judiciary reserves the right to have the parts sent by air freight at the expense of the Judiciary and the air freight costs shall not include contractor mark up. Parts shall be charged at cost, plus mark up not to exceed 20% (twenty percent). Invoices from suppliers shall be provided to the Judiciary to substantiate cost and markup.

1.10. ALLOWABLE COSTS FOR PARTS

If replacement parts or materials costing more than \$1,000 are required, the Judiciary shall compensate the Contractor for the part(s) at the Contractor's cost. The Contractor's material cost mark-up shall not exceed 20%, which shall include overhead, profit, and any other incidental expenses. Shipping may be excluded from the 20% mark-up if it is excessive but will be compensated (in full) without mark-up. If a subcontractor service is required, the Contractor's mark-up shall be limited to 10%, which shall include all of the above mentioned expenses. The Contractor shall substantiate all costs by submitting copy of part or material invoices with their invoice to the Judiciary. Use only new, standard parts or material as manufactured by the maker of each unit or part of equal quality.

J15013 -15-

1.11. CLEAN UP AND WORK PRACTICES

The Contractor shall keep the job site free of debris, discarded parts, refuse, etc. and shall clean all oil drippings during the daily progress of work. The Contractor shall remove all tools, used or waste oils and fluids, parts and equipment from the service areas upon completion of the work and legally dispose of, whether hazardous or not, in accordance with EPA and/or other government regulations including providing written records.

The Contractor shall exercise caution during the progress of maintenance and repair work to prevent damage to the ceilings, roofing and other building structure. Contractor shall restore all damages, caused by his negligence, at the Contractor's expense when requested by the Judiciary.

1.12. SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

The Contractor shall not perform maintenance and repair work until all switches are deenergized, locked, and tagged. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable safety regulations promulgated by HIOSH, OSHA, EPA, and other authorities having jurisdiction. .

End of Section

J15013 -16-

SECTION TWO A SPECIFICATIONS EDDY CURRENT TESTING OF THE THREE CHILLERS (2 Trane Model CVHE032, SN L03G06160, L03G06162, 1 Trane Model RTHB130, SN U03H06564) OF THE AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU'UHONUA KAULIKE)

During annual servicing, conduct eddy current test to detect imperfections in condenser and evaporator tubes. Analyze results of eddy current test and recommend corrective actions. Provide a report documenting the test results, analyses, and recommendations. Testing shall be conducted by an American Society for Non-Destructive Testing certified Level II or III examiner using a multi-frequency technique in accordance with the American Society of Mechanical Engineers Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code Section V, Article 8, Appendix 1, current edition.

As this test is recommended every 3 to 5 years, it is not a regular test expected every year. The contract administrator or designee will determine whether this test is to be included in this current bid offering as to coincide with the recommended service interval.

END OF SECTION

J15013 -17-

SECTION TWO SPECIFICATIONS CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE OF AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU'UHONUA KAULIKE)

2.1. SCOPE

- Contractor may subcontract for the services of a Chemical Water Treatment Contractor (WTC) who shall have a minimum of five (5) years water treatment service experience in Hawaii and who shall provide all necessary equipment, chemicals and services required to control corrosion, scale, and biological growth in the following systems:
 - A. Cooling tower
 - B. Condenser water
 - C. Chilled water

all in accordance with the specifications, special provisions, and terms and conditions herein; using qualified personnel with a minimum of five (5) years of field experience or an engineering degree in maintaining a water treatment program.

- 2. A minimum of 10% of the estimated annual usage of chemicals specified herein must be delivered to the service site prior to the start date of this contract. Each package of chemicals delivered shall be labeled with directions for usage per the approved dosage for each chemical. Submit the appropriate MSDS sheets for all chemicals with the initial delivery.
- 3. The treatment supplied by the WTC shall be one that has been designed and tailormade for the water being used in each system.
- 4. The WTC shall warrant that the chemicals used in the water treatment program and offered herein will not endanger the health or safety of persons coming into contact with the materials, damage personal or real property, have a detrimental effect on the metallic or non-metallic materials in the equipment being treated; as long as the WTC instructions are followed.
- 5. The chemical containers and equipment shall be located <u>within</u> a leak containment system. The WTC shall have an absorbent and/or clean-up system/program that must be available at each site and be submitted and approved by the Judiciary prior to start date of this contract.
- 6. All material and equipment that is found to be missing shall be provided by the WTC as required for the execution of this work and shall become the property of the Judiciary. Therefore any costs for materials and equipment used must be included in the offer price as submitted. The WTC shall submit an updated list of all equipment and parts included in the Water Treatment system to the Judiciary once a year at the end of the contract period, including name, model no., serial no., etc.
- 7. The WTC shall provide any and all testing (e.g. Legionella, etc.) as may be required to safeguard and protect the Judiciary should suspect conditions, allegations or complaints be experienced or as requested at no additional cost to the Judiciary.

J15013 -18-

2.2. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF THE TREATMENT PROGRAM

2.2.1. SCALE AND CORROSION CONTROL

- a. Scale and corrosion shall be inhibited by the controlled use of scale and corrosion prevention materials as herein noted.
 - 1. The use of essentially toxic and staining corrosion inhibitors such as chromate will <u>not</u> be permitted. The chilled water system is a closed system and can use nitrite solutions.
 - 2. The use of inhibitors such as organic phosphorous type will be permitted.
 - 3. The WTC corrosion inhibitors selected shall have been proven effective by at least two years' usage in the State of Hawaii.
 - 4. Poly-phosphates are not considered effective corrosion inhibitors and will not be permitted.
- b. An automatic feed system is generally installed at the service site for the WTC use; however, the WTC must verify this information and shall install and install in whole or part that which is missing from the system as currently installed at the site.
 - 1. The system shall include a completely automatic proportional pump feed and the bleed-off shall be in direct proportion to equipment load indicated by the makeup water (condenser water).
 - 2. Control shall be by means of a solid state conductivity meter, controller and a flow through probe sensor (condenser water).
 - 3. The controller shall be programmed to bleed-off the system and to regulate a preset (adjustable) solution feed pump (condenser water).
 - 4. A biocide timer to regulate a preset (adjustable) solution feed pump (condenser water).
 - Closed system valved by pass Pot feeder (chilled water).
 Note: WTC shall use their own injection pump to install chemicals.
- The water treatment must constantly prevent the build-up of adherent mineral deposits on the heat transfer surfaces of the equipment being treated.
 Periodic circulation of inhibited descaling acids will not be considered as meeting these specifications.
- d. The WTC shall install a test system immediately at the start of the contract. The test system shall include strainer, isolation and Dole valves, piping kit and test coupons. Prior to installation, the WTC shall submit to the Judiciary for approval the proposed test system installation plan layout or schematic piping diagram. WTC to perform an ISO 9000 corrosion analysis and test coupons replacement semi-annually at the end of June and December. Make adjustments to the water treatment program as required by findings and submit reports to the Judiciary within one (1) month of coupon

J15013 -19-

<u>replacements</u>. Corrosion rates shall be less than 2 mil per year for copper and 4 mils per year for steel - both with **no pitting**.

2.2.2. BIOLOGICAL GROWTH CONTROL

- a. Bacteria, algae and slime growths shall be prevented in all water circuits by using suitable biocides.
- b. Chemicals may be fed into water circuits requiring continuous make-up by automatic proportional feeding devices or by adding directly to the tower sump as required. Chemicals shall be slug fed into the system on a regular basis and not added continuously.
- c. Bromine oxidizing biocides may be used, but shall not include metallic salts, such as tin. A sufficient halogen residual shall be maintained to prevent Legionella. Quaternaries may be used, but only with oxidizing biocides.

2.2.3. CHEMICALS

- a. All chemicals shall be supplied in their original factory containers and no dilution of chemicals is allowed. Handling of chemicals shall be by the WTC and shall include specific application information, safety, and quality control information, including MSDS sheets.
- b. The chemicals provided must meet OSHA, Environmental Protection Agency, and ISO 9000 requirements for safety to personnel and the environment, and must be approved by the State.
- c. All chemicals supplied shall have been registered and in satisfactory use in Hawaii for at least two years. Bidder may be required to provide evidence of satisfactory performance of the chemical offered. The Judiciary shall be the sole judge of such satisfaction and the Judiciary's decision shall be final.
- d. Chemicals, other than those presently being used in the water treatment program, hereinafter referred as "new chemicals," shall be compatible with the existing chemicals, scale and corrosion inhibitor and broad spectrum bacteriostat.
 - Verification by an independent testing laboratory for the compatibility of the new chemicals shall be submitted upon award and <u>prior to</u> <u>commencement of work</u>.
 - 2. This verification is required for all chemicals not presently being used in the treatment program.
 - 3. Should the new chemicals be determined to be incompatible with the chemicals presently in use, the WTC shall be responsible for flushing the system to remove all chemicals before the new chemicals are introduced into the system. Any damages to the system resulting from the failure of the WTC to satisfactorily flush the system shall be repaired by the WTC at WTC expense and at no cost to the Judiciary.

J15013 -20-

e. The Judiciary will require the WTC to use the Judiciary's existing on-site stock of chemicals before purchasing additional chemicals. If the existing chemicals are not compatible with the new chemicals, they shall be legally disposed of by the WTC within the first two months of the contract and at no cost to the Judiciary. All other on-site aged, unused or stored chemicals must also be legally disposed of by the WTC within the first two months of the contract and at no cost to the Judiciary.

2.3. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

- Upon award of the contract the representative designated in the bid as the WTC shall visit the service sites to make an initial detailed chilled, condenser and raw water analysis to establish the prescribed treatment program.
 - a. The initial service call shall include establishment of treatment dosages, bleed schedules, and intervals to replenish chemicals for automatic feed system.
 - b. The WTC shall submit a report on the results of the initial water analysis and the prescribed water treatment program including findings and recommendations. This report shall be submitted within three (3) calendar days following the service call to the service call to the Judiciary.
 - c. The WTC shall also submit supplemental monthly, semi-annual and other supplemental reports as required and shall initiate and document changes required from the initial prescribed water treatment program.
- 2. The designated representative of the WTC shall make service calls and water analysis/testing at intervals of a maximum of thirty (30) calendar days for condenser water and one hundred eighty (180) calendar days for chilled water, or sooner if required or notified of concern. WTC shall notify the Officer-in-Charge **prior** to conducting the test and **upon completion** of the service/testing.
 - a. The representative shall make initial application of each material and shall continuously furnish specific treatment of the water as required.
 - b. He shall also investigate any unusual conditions pertaining to scale deposition as indicated by condenser operating data, corrosion, and algae growths, & implement corrective action, as required.
 - c. The WTC shall submit the results of the water analysis and the prescribed water treatment including findings and recommendations and service requirements performed in a report. This report shall be submitted within three (3) calendar days following the service call.
- 3. The WTC shall be totally responsible for a continuous water treatment program.
 - a. WTC shall be available on-site during the performance of the cooling tower and condenser tube cleaning services and coordinate the inspection with the Contractor and the Judiciary
 - b. The WTC shall be totally responsible for the water treatment equipment and shall keep it functioning at its optimum through proper maintenance, repair, or replacement as required including piping and electrical.

J15013 -21-

- 4. Condenser Water Chemical Feed System shall be serviced **monthly** as follows:
 - a. Check chemical feed pumps for proper operation and/or adjust if needed. Check agitator motor where applicable.
 - b. Check condition of chemical drums and containment system for leaks and repair/replace and refill as required.
 - c. Check operations of automatic chemical controller system for proper sensor and piping for proper operation. Check for leaks and repair.
 - d. Calibrate chemical feed as required by water analysis from test results. Indicate amount of each chemical used at each site.
 - e. Log water meter readings for makeup and bleed where available. Remove **empty** chemical containers and clean area.
 - f. Report all discrepancies, adjustments, repairs or corrections performed, and certify that system has received monthly service.
- 5. Chilled Water Chemical Feed System shall be serviced **semiannually** in April and October as follows:
 - a. Check chemical concentration and add chemicals as needed to keep the residual concentration in 800 to 1000 PPM range. Should recharging be required, it shall be performed within one week from discovery or notification along with a new report to be submitted immediately.
 - b. Report residual concentration and the amount of chemical used, certify that system has received semiannual service.
- 6. The WTC shall maintain a "service log" at each chiller room for recording the following information for each visit, also include in submitted regular service reports and recheck service reports:
 - a. Name of service representative and date of service.
 - b. Items serviced, adjusted, repaired, etc.
 - Record set points and recommended ranges including (make-up and bleed water meter readings at locations where available) and quantities of each chemical used and remaining.
 - d. Record and analyze readings of raw and systems water samples to include but not be limited to: PH, conductivity (micro-mho), silica, alkalinity, calcium hardness, magnesium, chlorides, bio-organism counts and nitrite residuals.
- 7. All work done and all material furnished shall be subject to inspection and approval of the Officer-in-Charge so as to ascertain that the services rendered are in accordance with the requirements and intentions of the specifications, special provisions, and the general conditions.

J15013 -22-

2.4. PENALTIES

The Contractor <u>shall not</u> be responsible for repairs/penalties due to flagrant vandalism, fire, storm, or related damages that can be attributed to causes beyond his control. However, the Contractor shall be responsible for such repairs/penalties if the damages are caused by the Contractor's negligence or failure to properly maintain and repair the equipment/system.

- 1. The WTC shall clean the system at no cost to the Judiciary within thirty (30)days of discovery of the Contractor's failure to meet minimum and service requirements.
- 2. If the corrosion rate exceeds 2 mils per year for copper and/or 4 mils per year for steel, the WTC shall be assessed damages of \$3,000.00 per chiller in the system.
- 3. If the bacterial population in the condenser water exceeds 10,000 colonies or is judged to be out of control by the Judiciary, the WTC shall take immediate corrective action to reduce the population below 10,000 colonies.
- 4. The WTC may be assessed \$50.00 per incident for each and every calendar day from the date of non-compliance. If the WTC fails to correct any condition which does not meet the minimum and service requirements indicated above, the Judiciary reserves the right to require Contractor to replace the WTC and to not allow the WTC to bid or participate in any Judiciary work.
- 5. If water meter readings indicate excessive water usage by the condenser water system in the absence of mechanical problems in the system, the cost of the excess water used as calculated by the Judiciary will be deducted from the WTC billing to the Judiciary.
- 6. Should a chemical cleaning of the chiller tubes become necessary, the WTC shall perform same including the re-brushing of the chiller tubes all at no additional cost to the Judiciary, and in addition be assessed \$500.00 per chiller per occurrence.
- 7. Should corrosion damage to any part of the system occur <u>due to the use of oxidizing biocides</u> and/or halogen levels exceeding 0.5 ppm, the WTC shall be required to repair or correct the damages, and in addition be assessed\$500.00 per chiller per occurrence.
- 8. Should an unsatisfactory condition be discovered or upon notification, the WTC shall correct it immediately, re-check the system within one week and submit a new report. Failure to re-check and submit a new report shall cause the WTC to be assessed a \$25.00 per incident for each and every calendar day from the date of non-compliance until the re-check and report is submitted.

End of Section

J15013 -23-

SECTION THREE, SPECIAL PROVISIONS

3.1. SCOPE

Work included in this contract shall consist of providing MAINTENANCE SERVICE, and CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING OF THE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU`UHONUA KAULIKE) THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII. All work shall be performed in accordance with these Special Provisions, the attached Specifications, General Conditions, dated February 2001 and Procedural Requirements dated May 2003 by reference made a part hereof and available at our website: http://www4.state.hi.us/jud

3.2. OFFICER-IN-CHARGE

A. For the purpose of this contract, Mr. David Lam, Circuit Court Administrator, Fifth Judicial Circuit, or his designee shall be designated Officer-in-Charge. The telephone number at which he may be reached is (808) 482-2308. Mr. Dean Kuboyama, Facilities Manager, Fifth Judicial Circuit is designated the contact person for this contract. He may be contacted at (808) 482-2381.

3.3. PRICE ADJUSTMENT

- A. Request for contract price adjustment may be approved, effective July 1st of each extended contract period, provided that such adjustment meets the following:
 - 1. Seventy percent (70%) of the monthly contract price for the facility for furnishing maintenance service may be adjusted, provided the wages paid to a State <u>Air Conditioning Mechanic I, BC10</u>, is adjusted due to contract negotiations during the contract period previous to the extension being negotiated. At the release of this bid solicitation, the current wage of a State employee performing similar work are known. Effective, January, 2014, the basic hourly wage paid to an Air Conditioning Mechanic I, BC -10 is \$ 23.13 Accordingly, Offeror should consider the aforementioned wage rate when preparing his/her bid proposal.
 - Increase in contract price shall be limited to the percent of increase in wages paid to the aforementioned State position, provided however, where the Contractor's wages exceed that paid to the aforementioned State position and the percentage increase in the Contractor's wages made during the contract period previous to the extension being negotiated, is less than the percentage increase to the State employee's wages, adjustment will be limited to the percent of adjustment in the Contractor's wage. The increase requested must result in increase in wages to the contractor's employees performing the work herein, including any increase in costs for benefits required by law that are automatically increased as a result of increased wages, such as federal old age benefit, workers compensation, temporary disability insurance, unemployment insurance, and prepaid public health insurance.
 - 3. Thirty percent (30%) of the contract price shall not be subject to increase. Note that if a price adjustment is not requested by the Contractor for any extended contract period, it cannot be requested during a future extension period. For example, if a price adjustment is requested during the second contract extension period but not during the first contract extension period, the price adjustment, if approved, will

J15013 -24-

include an adjustment for the second extension period only, not both the first and second extension period - it is **not retroactive**.

3.4. OFFEROR QUALIFICATION

Prospective Offerors must be properly certified by the State of Hawaii to perform air conditioning equipment maintenance and to conduct business in the State. Offers submitted by noncertified and unlicensed offerors shall be rejected.

A. EXPERIENCE AND PERSONNEL QUALIFICATIONS

- 1. The Offeror shall have a minimum of five (5) consecutive years experience (immediately prior to the bid opening date) in the field of air conditioning and ventilation equipment maintenance service and repair service of centrifugal and reciprocating chillers. Bidder's personnel can be listed only once in the mechanics spaces provided on the appropriate Offer forms. All bidders must be able to produce documented maintenance and repair experience to substantiate their claim of experience.
- 2. The bidder shall have at least one (1) full-time journeyman refrigeration/air conditioning mechanic who is a regular employee of the bidder at the time of bid with a minimum of five (5) consecutive years of **centrifugal chiller maintenance and repair experience** (immediately prior to the bid opening date) on similar types of equipment as indicated in these specifications. **The bidder shall furnish the above information for centrifugal chiller journeymen mechanics on the Offer form**.
- 3. The bidder shall have at least two (2) journeymen refrigeration/air conditioning mechanics, who are regular employees of the bidder at the time of bid assigned to perform air conditioning and ventilation equipment maintenance and repair. Each mechanic shall have a minimum of three (3) consecutive years of maintenance and repair experience (immediately prior to the bid opening date) of air conditioning and ventilation equipment, other than centrifugal and reciprocating chiller equipment on similar types of equipment as indicated in the specifications. The bidder shall furnish the above information for journeymen refrigeration/air conditioning mechanics on the Offer form.
- 4. The bidder shall also have refrigeration mechanics who are regular employees of the bidder at the time of bid to assist the journeymen refrigeration mechanics perform air conditioning and ventilating equipment maintenance and repair. Each mechanic shall have a minimum of two (2) consecutive years of air conditioning maintenance and repair experience of air conditioning and ventilating equipment, on similar types of equipment as indicated on these specifications. The bidder shall furnish the above information for journeymen refrigeration/air conditioning mechanics on the Offer form.
- 5. Journeyman refrigeration/air conditioning mechanics **qualifications** must be in accordance with the **local union requirements** and <u>PROOF MUST BE PROVIDED</u>.

J15013 -25-

ALL AIR CONDITIONING/REFRIGERATION MECHANICS MUST HAVE A REFRIGERATION UNIVERSAL CERTIFICATION CLASSIFICATION AND MUST PROVIDE PROOF OF THIS CERTIFICATION.

<u>All mechanics</u> assigned to work on <u>any</u> chiller shall be <u>trained and certified</u> in the use of a self-contained breathing apparatus.

All prospective offerers shall provide documented maintenance experience records to substantiate their claim of experience as indicated above at the time their offer is submitted.

- 6. The Judiciary reserves the right to reject a bid submitted by any bidder who provides false personnel qualifications. Falsification of personnel qualifications, inability to perform the work in accordance with these specifications, utilization of unqualified personnel, or excessively high turnover of personnel assigned to this project SHALL CONSTITUTE A BREACH OF CONTRACT.
- 7. QUALIFICATION FORM. Bidder shall complete and submit the required qualification form requested in Offeror Qualification section of these Special Provisions. If requested by the Judiciary, the bidder shall have five (5) days to provide additional information/documentation. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the bidder. The Judiciary reserves the right to reject any bid that is missing any requested information or provides false personnel qualifications.

B. REFERENCES

Bidder shall list on the bid proposal form at least three (3) references in the State of Hawaii, for whom bidder has performed a <u>total coverage mechanical maintenance service</u> of air conditioning and ventilation equipment and temperature control system on a regular basis within the last 5 years, that is similar in nature and volume to services specified herein, that will qualify bidder to perform the project. The Judiciary reserves the right to contact the references provided, and to reject any bid submitted by a Contractor whose performance on other service contracts similar to this type of service has been proven unsatisfactory.

C. CONTRACTOR LICENSES

Contractor at the time of bid submittal, must possess a valid State of Hawaii contractor's license to perform air conditioning equipment maintenance and the required business and tax licenses in order to conduct business in the State of Hawaii. Both the contractor's license and tax license must be kept in force during the duration of this contract and for any extensions that may be agreed upon.

D. SPARE PARTS

The Contractor shall maintain spare parts, refrigerant, and materials that are required for normal repairs and maintenance to air conditioning and ventilating equipment.

E. PERMANENT OFFICE

OFFEROR awarded this contract shall have a permanent office location where OFFEROR conducts his business and is accessible to telephone calls for complaints or requests that require immediate attention. Answering services are not acceptable. The permanent office location shall be stated on the Proposal.

J15013 -26-

F. EXAMINATION OF SERVICE AREAS

- Prospective Offerers are required to visit the service areas listed on the Equipment Listing Schedule and thoroughly familiarize themselves with existing conditions and the amount and kind of work to be performed. No additional compensation will be made by reason of any misunderstanding or error regarding conditions at the service areas or the amount and kind of work to be performed.
- 2. OFFEROR shall consider the existing equipment to be in "as is" condition, no additional compensation may be allowed for replacing non-working components. Submission of bid shall be evidence that the OFFEROR understands and will comply with these specifications if awarded the contract. All equipment whether listed on the schedule or not, but is a component of the air conditioning system, shall be serviced. Appointments to inspect the Fifth Judicial Circuit (Pu`uhonua Kaulike) may be made by telephoning the Officer-in-Charge, between the hours of 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday to Friday except on State holidays.

3.5. OFFER PREPARATION

- A. **Legal Name** Offeror is requested to submit its bid under its exact legal name as registered at the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs. Failure to do so may delay proper execution of the contract.
- B. **Bid Quotation** Bid price shall include labor, supervision, materials, supplies, equipment, trucks and other appurtenances necessary to provide air conditioning maintenance services as detailed in the accompanying Specifications. Bid price shall also include all applicable taxes and other costs incurred to provide services as specified.
 - All Offers submitted must be on the forms provided and must be in accordance with the terms and conditions stated herein. Any offer stating terms and conditions contradictory to those included herein will be rejected without further consideration.
- C. Wage Certificate OFFEROR shall complete and submit the attached Wage Certificate by which the OFFEROR certifies that the services required will be performed pursuant to Section 103-55, H.R.S. Offerers are advised that Section 103-55, H.R.S., provides that the services to be performed shall be performed by employees paid at wages not less than wages paid to public officers and employees for similar work. Offerers are further advised that in the event of an increase in wage rates to public employees performing similar work during the contract period, the Contractor will be obliged to increase their wage rates accordingly.

In the event of a wage increase to public employees during the contract period, the Contractor will be notified of such increase and the method by which the Contractor can apply for the increase in contract price. These increases shall include additional costs for those benefits required by statute, i.e. federal old age benefits, worker's compensation, temporary disability insurance, unemployment insurance and prepaid public health insurance.

Contractor shall be obliged to notify its employees performing work under this contract of the provisions of Section 103-55, H.R.S., and the current wage rate for public employees

J15013 **-27-**

performing similar work. The Contractor may meet this obligation by posting a notice to this effect in the Contractor's place of business in an area accessible to all employees, or may include such notice with each paycheck or pay envelope furnished employees. To assist Offerers in determining whether the work his employees are to perform under this contract is similar to that performed by public employees, attached are class specifications for the positions that perform refuse collection service duties.

- D. **Proposal Guarantee:** A Proposal Guarantee is not required for this project.
- E. **Contract Bond:** A Contract Bond is not required for this project.
- F. **Tax Liability** Work to be performed under this solicitation is a business activity taxable under Chapter 237, HRS, and vendors are advised that they are liable for the Hawaii General Excise tax (GET). If however, an Offeror is a person exempt by the HRS from paying the GET and therefore not liable for the taxes on this solicitation, Offeror shall state its tax exempt status and cite the HRS chapter or section allowing the exemption.
- G. <u>Estimated Extra Work (Hourly Rate)</u>: Bid price for the hourly rate for estimated extra work service hours shall reflect Contractor's hourly rate(<u>not an overtime rate</u>) that will be charged for any authorized extra work that is not covered under these specifications. The estimated hourly rate for extra work is to be used solely for bid evaluation purposes and not intended to reflect a guaranteed amount or to be included in the contract amount.

3.6. CONTRACT AWARD

A. Award, if any, shall be made to the responsive and responsible Offeror submitting the lowest Total Bid price to provide maintenance service and chemical water treatment service and eddy current testing of the air conditioning and ventilation system at Fifth Circuit Court. Offeror must bid on all items to be considered for award. If there is an error in computation of the Total Sum Bid Price the Total Bid Price per item shall govern.

To be eligible for award and prior to execution of contract, the successful Offeror will be required to submit copies of the documents listed below to demonstrate compliance with Section 103D-310(c), HRS. The documents should be applied for and submitted to the Judiciary as soon as possible. If valid certificates are not submitted on a timely basis, an offer otherwise responsive and responsible may not receive the contract.

Prior to awarding contract, the Judiciary will require verification of the following insurance coverages:

Worker's Compensation Unemployment Insurance

Temporary Disability Prepaid Health Care

B. RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR

To be eligible for award, the apparent low bidder will be contacted to submit copies of the documents listed below to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of § 103D-310©, HRS:

- 1. Chapter 237, tax clearance;
- 2. Chapter 383, unemployment insurance;
- 3. Chapter 386, worker's compensation;

J15013 -28-

- 4. Chapter 392, temporary disability insurance;
- 5. Chapter 393, prepaid health care; and
- 6. Chapter 103D-310(C), Certificate in Good Standing (COGS) for entities doing business in the State of Hawaii.

The Contractor may choose to use the Hawaii Compliance Express (HCE) which allows businesses register online through а simple wizard interface http://vendors.ehawaii.gov to acquire a "Certificate of Vendor Compliance". The HCE provides current compliance status as of the issuance date. In order to meet compliance, the certificate must indicate "COMPLIANT". This certificate shall be accepted for both contracting purposes and final payment. There is an annual fee to the Hawaii Information Consortium, LLC. If the Contractor chooses not to enroll in HCE, paper certificates are required.

Timely Submission of all Certificates. The above certificates should be applied for and submitted to the Judiciary upon award of contract. If a valid certificate is not submitted on a timely basis for award of a contract, a contract may not be awarded.

C. Final Payment Requirements. In addition to a tax clearance certificate an original CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING for FINAL PAYMENT (SPO Form 22) will be required for final payment. A copy of the form is also available at http://www4.hawaii.gov/StateFormsFiles/form221.pdf

3.7. INSURANCE

The Contractor shall at his own expense procure and maintain in full force and effect during the life of this contract, motor vehicle and general liability insurance including personal injury and property damage for all labor employed in performing services under this contract.

The following minimum insurance coverage(s) and limit(s) shall be provided by the Contractor, including its subcontractor(s) where appropriate.

Coverage
General Liability Insurance

Limits

\$1,000,000 minimum per occurrence for bodily

injury and property damage

\$2,000,000 aggregate for damages for bodily injury and property damage

Basic Motor Vehicle Insurance BI:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence

PD: \$1,000,000 per occurrence

Each Insurance policy required by this contract, including a subcontractor's policy, shall contain the following clauses:

- 1 "this insurance shall not be canceled, limited in scope of coverage or nonrenewed until after 30 days written notice has been given to the Judiciary."
- 2. "The Judiciary is added as an additional insured and shall be written by insurance companies licensed to do business in the State of Hawaii."
- 3. "It is agreed that any insurance maintained by the State of Hawaii will apply in excess of, and not contribute with, insurance provided by this policy."

J15013 **-29-**

The minimum insurance required shall be in full compliance with the Hawaii Insurance Code throughout the entire term of the contract, including supplemental agreements.

Upon Contractor's execution of the contract, the Contractor agrees to deposit with the Judiciary, certificate(s) of insurance necessary to satisfy the Judiciary that the insurance provisions of this contract have been complied with and to keep such insurance in effect and the certificate(s) therefore on deposit with the Judiciary during the entire term of this contract, including those of its subcontractor(s), where appropriate. Upon request by the Judiciary, Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing a copy of the policy or policies.

Failure of the Contractor to provide and keep in force such insurance shall be regarded as material default under this contract, entitling the Judiciary to exercise any or all of the remedies provided in this contract for a default of the Contractor.

3.8. CONTRACT EXECUTION AND EXTENSION

A. Successful Offeror receiving the award shall be required to enter into a formal written contract. The Contractor shall enter into a contract for a period of twenty four (24) months commencing July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2016. The contract shall be enforceable only to the extent that funds have been certified and are available of the purchase of the identified services. The Unless terminated, and subject to availability of funds, the contract may be extended by the Judiciary for not more than two (2) additional twelve (12) month periods without rebidding, upon mutual agreement in writing at least sixty (60) days prior to expiration. The contract may be extended provided the monthly contract price for the extended period remains the same as the previous year's, adjusted as set forth in the Price Adjustment provision or is negotiated and mutually agreed upon by each party and that the increase in amount will be no more than 5% of the monthly contract price. If the option to extend for an additional period is mutually agreed upon, the Contractor shall be required to execute a supplement to the contract. Any contract extension must be executed by the Contractor on less than thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled date of termination, otherwise the requirement must be rebid. All contract extensions are subject to the availability of funds.

3.9. EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS

A. OFFEROR is requested to review the attached public employee classifications and to designate on proposal if his employees are performing similar or equal services. OFFEROR who is awarded this contract and who designates that his employees are not performing services similar or equal to public employees will not be entitled to price adjustment(s) under the Price Adjustment clause of these Special Provisions should public employees receive a wage increase at any time subsequent to July 1, 2014.

3.10. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

A. Offerers shall submit three (3) copies (1 original, 2 copies) of the Proposal Submission Packet. Completed proposals must be submitted no later than 2:00 p.m. HST on June 3, 2014.

The Judiciary, State of Hawaii

J15013 -30-

Financial Services Office 1111 Alakea Street, 6th Floor Honolulu, HI 96813-2807 Attention: Kelly Otake

PROPOSALS RECEIVED AFTER THE ABOVE DATE AND TIME SPECIFIED SHALL NOT BE ACCEPTED AND SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE VENDOR UNOPENED.

3.11. SUBCONTRACTING

A. The Contractor shall not delegate any duties listed in this IFB to a subcontractor other than those listed on the Offer Form unless given written approval by the Financial Services Administrator. The Judiciary reserves the right to approve subcontractors and to require the primary Contractor to replace a subcontractor(s) found to be unacceptable. The primary Contractor will be the sole point of contact with regard to contractual matters, including payment to any and all charges resulting from the contract, and shall be responsible for all services whether or not the primary Contractor performs them.

Maintenance Service: Bidder shall not subcontract this portion of the work. Bid price for maintenance services shall include ALL COSTS for labor, equipment, parts and materials (costing less than \$1,000), refrigerant and recovery of refrigerant using EPA certified recovery equipment, mileage and all taxes, and any other expenses necessary as required to perform the service as specified in this bid solicitation. In addition, OFFEROR is requested to furnish in the space provided on the Offer Form, the applicable labor rate that will be charged for extra work (not covered under the scope of work of this IFB) as approved by the Officer-in-Charge. This rate shall be the standard hourly rate charged by the bidder and NOT an overtime rate and shall include ALL applicable fringe benefits, travel, mileage and tax costs.

<u>Chemical Water Treatment Service</u>: Offerer may subcontract this portion of the work and the Bid Price for Chemical Water Treatment Service shall include **ALL COSTS** for labor, material, equipment, chemicals, maintenance/repair services, laboratory fees, all taxes, and any other expenses necessary to perform the Chemical Water Treatment. Bidder shall furnish the price as required by the Chemical Water Treatment specifications.

3.12. SERVICE AREAS

A. The Contractor shall perform the service at the facility in which the units are located. The Judiciary shall notify the Contractor of any subsequent change of unit locations listed on the Equipment Schedule and furnish any other pertinent information necessary for the proper execution of the contract.

3.13. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

A. The Judiciary reserves the right to add or delete air conditioning equipment to this contract. When units are deleted from the contract, the Judiciary will not make adjustments to the contract price; however, the Judiciary reserves the right to replace deleted units on a one-for-one basis without an increase in contract price. Further, the Judiciary reserves the right to add up to five (5) additional units without an increase in

J15013 -31-

contract price. Increase in contract price for additional units in excess of the aforementioned five units shall be negotiated between the Contractor and the Judiciary and shall become binding only upon issuance of an official change order by the Judiciary.

3.14. PERFORMANCE OF WORK

A. While performing the work, the Contractor shall take the necessary safety and precautionary measures to prevent the occurrence of hazardous situations for the Contractor's employees, the occupants of the buildings, and the general public. The Contractor shall at all times conduct his work to assure the least possible interference with the occupants of the buildings and cause the least possible inconvenience to the public.

Property damaged by the Contractor shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor, at his expense, to the satisfaction of the Officer-in-Charge. The Contractor shall maintain the work area in a clean and safe condition.

3.15. REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES

A. Contractor agrees to remove any of its employees for unsatisfactory performance of services rendered and to be rendered to the Judiciary, upon request in writing by the Officer-in-Charge.

3.16. INSPECTION

A. All services provided and all materials furnished shall be subject to random periodic inspection and approval by the Officer-In-Charge, or a representative of the Judiciary, so as to ascertain that the services rendered are in accordance with requirements and intentions of the Specifications and Special Provisions. The Officer-in-Charge may require additional information as necessary to maintain a record of the services rendered, and also request the presence of the Contractor on field inspections to be scheduled periodically.

The Contractor shall furnish the Officer-in-Charge two copies of a service check receipt for each unit serviced and a service check list bearing the signature of the maintenance man and the signature of the designated Judiciary officer certifying receipt of services. Services which cannot be certified by a representative of the Judiciary may not be compensated.

3.17. WORK SCHEDULE

A. The work to be done shall be accomplished according to the Specifications. In the event the Contractor fails to complete the work according to the specified schedule, liquidated damages shall be assessed in accordance with the section on Liquidated Damages of these Special Provisions.

The Judiciary reserves the right to change the work schedule of any work site at any time upon thirty (30) days prior written notice with the bid price remaining the same.

3.18. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

J15013 -32-

A. Contractor shall submit original and three copies of the invoice to the following address:

The Judiciary of Hawaii Fifth Judicial Circuit Fiscal Office 3970 Kaana Street Lihue, Hi 96766

- B. Payment shall be made to the Contractor at monthly installments upon certification that the Contractor has satisfactorily performed the required services as specified in the Specifications and in accordance to the General Conditions and these Special Provisions.
- C. For extra work approved by the Officer-in-Charge or his representative, a separate detailed invoice is required.
- D. Section 103-10, H.R.S. provides that the Judiciary shall have thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of invoice or performance of the services, to make payment. For this reason, the Judiciary shall reject any bid submitted with a condition requiring payment within a shorter period. Further, the Judiciary will reject any bid submitted with a condition requiring interest payments greater than that allowed by Section 103-10, H.R.S., as amended. The Judiciary will not recognize any requirement established by the Contractor and communicated to the Judiciary after award of the contract, which requires payment within a shorter period or interest payment not in conformance with the Statute.

3.19 OTHER SPECIAL PROVISIONS

3.19.1. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

- A. The Judiciary will give notice to the Contractor of such delay, neglect or default if the Contractor If the Contractor:
 - 1. Fails to begin the work or services under the contract within or by the time specified;
 - 2. Fails to perform the work with sufficient workmen, equipment, or materials to insure prompt completion of the work;
 - 3. Performs the work or services negligently, or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform anew, such work or services that may be rejected as unacceptable;
 - 4. Discontinues the prosecution of the work or services:
 - 5. Otherwise breaches any term of the contract;
 - 6. Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency;

J15013 -33-

- 7. Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of ten (10) days;
- 8. Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors;
- 9. For any other cause whatsoever, Contractor fails to carry out the work or services in an acceptable manner.
- B. If the Contractor within a period of ten (10) days after the date of such notice, shall not proceed in accordance therewith, then the Judiciary will have full power and authorize, without violating the contract to take the prosecution of the work or services out of the hands of the Contractor, and to use such methods are deemed necessary to complete the contract in an acceptable manner.
- C. All costs and charges incurred by the Judiciary, together with the cost of completing the work or services under the contract, will be offset from any monies due or which would or might have become due to the Contractor had the Contractor completed the work under the contract. If such expense exceeds the sum which would have been payable under the contract, the Contractor shall be liable and shall pay to the Judiciary the amount of such excess within ten (10) days after demand therefore.

3.19.2. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

A. Failure to complete the services described in the contract within the time proposed will cause damage to the Judiciary. The amounts of said damages shall be fixed at the sum of ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS (\$100.00) for each and every calendar day the Contractor delays in the completion of any item of the contract after the required date of said completion. The total sum due for such delay, shall be deducted from any payments due or to become due to the Contractor or shall be billed to the Contractor. The Contractor is responsible for payment, to the Judiciary, of all liquidated damages assessed against the Contractor.

3.19.3. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT

A. In the event the Contractor fails, refuses or neglects to perform any of the services in accordance with the requirements of these Special Provisions and the Specifications herein, in addition to the recourse stated in the General Conditions, the Judiciary reserves the right to purchase in the open market, a corresponding quantity of services specified herein and to deduct from any moneys due or that may thereafter become due to the Contractor, the difference between the price named in the contract and the actual cost thereof to the Judiciary. In case any money due the Contractor is insufficient for said purpose, the Contractor shall pay the difference upon demand by the Judiciary. The Judiciary may also utilize all other remedies provided by law.

3.19.4. CANCELLATION OF SOLICITATION AND REJECTION OF OFFERS

A. The solicitation may be canceled or the offers may be rejected, in whole or in part, when in the best interest of the purchasing agency, as provided in 3-122-95 through 3-122-97 HAR.

3.19.5. CONFLICTS AND VARIATIONS

J15013 -34-

A. In the event of any conflict or variation between the provisions of this document entitled Special Provisions and the General Conditions, the provisions of the document entitled Special Provisions shall control. In the event of any conflict or variation between the provisions of this document entitled Special Provisions and the Specifications, the provisions of the document entitled Specifications shall control.

End of Section

J15013 -35-

WAGE CERTIFICATE

Subject: PROPOSAL NO. J15013

Description of Project: TO PROVIDE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION

SYSTEM MAINTENANCE SERVICE AND CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING AT THE FIFTH CIRCUIT COURT (PU'UHONUA KAULIKE)

Pursuant to Section 103-55, Hawaii Revised Statutes, I hereby certify that if awarded the contract in excess of \$25,000, the services to be performed will be performed under the following conditions:

- 1. The services to be rendered shall be performed by employees paid at wages or salaries not less than wages paid to the public officers and employees for similar work, if similar positions are listed in the classification plan of the public sector.
- 2. All applicable laws of the Federal and State governments relating to workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, payment of wages, and safety will be fully complied with.

I understand that all payments required by Federal and State laws to be made by employers for the benefit of their employees are to be paid in addition to the base wages required by Section 103-55, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

I understand that all payments required by Federal and State laws to be made by employers for the benefit of their employees are to be paid in addition to the base wages required by Section 103-55, Hawaii Revised Statutes.

Offerer:
Signature:
olgitature.
Name:
Title:

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT DECLARATION

For the	purposes of this declaration:
	olling interest" means an interest in a business or other undertaking which is sufficient in fact to control, or the interest is greater or less than fifty per cent (50%).
	yee" means any nominated, appointed, or elected officer or employee of the State, including members of commissions, and committees, and employees under contract to the State or of the constitutional convention, cluding legislators, delegates to the constitutional convention, justices and judges.
On beha	alf of, PROVIDER, the undersigned does declare as follows:
1.	PROVIDER(is) _(is not) _ A legislator or an employee or a business in which a legislator or an employee has a controlling interest.*
2.	PROVIDER has not been assisted or represented by a legislator or employee for a fee or other compensation to obtain this Agreement and will not be assisted or represented by a legislator or employee for a fee or other compensation in the performance of the Agreement, if the legislator or employee had been involved in the development or award of the Agreement.
3.	PROVIDER has not been assisted or represented for a fee or other compensation in the award of this Agreement by a JUDICIARY employee or, in the case of the Legislature, by a legislator.
4.	PROVIDER has not been represented or assisted personally on matters related to the Agreement by a person who has been an employee of the JUDICIARY within the preceding two (2) years and who participated while in state office or employment on the matter with which the Agreement is directly concerned.
5.	PROVIDER has not been represented or assisted on matters related to this Agreement, for a fee or other consideration by an individual who, within the past twelve (12) months, has been a JUDICIARY employee, or in the case of the Legislature, a legislator.
6.	PROVIDER has not been represented or assisted in the award of this Agreement for a fee or other consideration by an individual who, a) within the past twelve (12) months, served as a JUDICIARY employee or in the case of the Legislature, a legislator, and (b) participated while an employee or legislator on matters related to this Agreement.
JUDIC referred Additio	DER understands that the Agreement to which this document is attached is voidable on behalf of the IARY if this Agreement was entered into in violation of any provision of Chapter 84, HRS, commonly d to as the Code of Ethics, including the provisions which are the source of the declarations above. onally, any fee, compensation, gift, or profit received by any person as a result of a violation of the Code of may be recovered by the JUDICIARY.
DATED	D: Hawaji

*Reminder to JUDICIARY: If "is" is circled, the JUDICIARY is required, under section 84-15, HRS, to file with the State Ethics Commission, ten (10) days before the Agreement is entered into, a written justification as to why the Agreement was not required to be competitively bid.

Title _____

(Date)

(City)

PROVIDER

BID PROPOSAL

TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE SERVICE, and CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING OF THE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU`UHONUA KAULIKE)
THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII
J15013

OFFEROR:
, Hawaii
, 2014
Dear Financial Services Administrator:
The undersigned has carefully read and understands the terms and conditions specified in the Specifications and Special Provisions attached hereto, and in the General Terms and Conditions dated May 2001 by reference made a part hereof and available upon request; and hereby submits the following offer to perform the work specified herein, all in accordance with the true intent and meaning thereof. The undersigned further understands and agrees that by submitting this offer, 1) he/she is declaring his/her offer is not in violation of Chapter 84, Hawaii Revised Statutes, concerning prohibited State contracts, and 2) he/she is certifying that the price(s) submitted was (were) independently arrived at without collusion.
The undersigned hereby proposes to provide TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE SERVICE, and CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING OF THE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU`UHONUA KAULIKE), THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII, in strict compliance with the Agreement, Specifications, Special Provisions, General Conditions, and Procedural Requirements attached hereto and made a part hereof for the TOTAL BID PRICE of:

Dollars (\$____

The undersigned represents: (Check √ one only) □ A Hawaii Business incorporated or organized under the State of Hawaii; OR						
Hawaii, is or shall be registered at the State of Hawaii De	☐ A Compliant Non-Hawaii business not incorporated or organized under the laws of the State of Hawaii, is or shall be registered at the State of Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division (DCCA-BREG) to do business in the State of Hawaii State of Incorporation					
Offeror is: \square Sole Proprietor \square Partnership \square Corporation \square Joint Venture \square Other						
Federal I.D. No. Hawaii General Excise Tax License I.D. No						
Payment address (other than street address below):						
City, State, Zip Code						
Business address (Hawaii street address):	·					
City, State, Zip Code						
	Respectfully submitted,					
Date:	(x)Authorized Signature (Original)					
Telephone No.:	Authorized Signature (Original)					
e-mail Address:						
	Name and Title (Please Type or Print)					
	Exact Legal Name of Company (Offeror)					
If offeror shown above is a "dba" or a "division" of a corporation under which the contract, if awarded, will be executed:	n, furnish the exact legal name of the corporation					

The following proposal is hereby submitted TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE SERVICE, and CHEMICAL WATER TREATMENT SERVICE AND EDDY CURRENT TESTING OF THE AIR CONDITIONING AND VENTILATION SYSTEM AT FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT (PU`UHONUA KAULIKE), THE JUDICIARY, STATE OF HAWAII:

I. Bid Costs

1. Air Conditioning System maintenance, all labor costs, all required services, materials, travel time, overhead, profit and all applicable taxes for services as described in section 1: Monthly/Quarterly Price annual total

Period	Bid Price Per Month	Months	Bid Price	
	(A)	(B)	(A x B)	
7/1/14 – 6/30/15	\$	12	\$	
7/1/15 – 6/30/16	\$	12	\$	
Subtotal Air Conditioning System Maintenance \$				

2. Chemical Water Treatment Services, all labor costs, all required services, materials, travel time, overhead, profit and all applicable taxes for services prices include all as described in as described in section 2:

Period	Bid Price Per Month	Months	Bid Price	
	(A)	(B)	(A x B)	
7/1/14 – 6/30/15	\$	12	\$	
7/1/15 – 6/30/16	\$	12	\$	
Subtotal Chemical Water Treatment Services \$				

2A. Eddy Current testing for 3 (Three) Chillers, Lump sum, all labor costs, all required services, materials, travel time, overhead, profit and all applicable taxes for services prices include all as described in Section 2A:

Chiller 1	\$
Chiller 2	\$
Chiller 3	\$
Subtotal Eddy Current testing	\$

If Eddy Current testing is not needed, section 2A will be taken out of the proposal and the cost will not be considered.

Bidders must bid on all three sections to be considered for award.

	Description	Bid Price
1	Air Conditioning System maintenance	\$
2	Chemical Water Treatment Services	\$
2A	Eddy Current testing for 3 (Three) Chillers	\$
Total Bid Price**		\$

Bid Amount shall include all applicable taxes and expenses required to fulfill the terms and conditions of this proposal.

^{**} Total Bid should agree with the bid amount shown on page 1 of the Bid Proposal.

BIDDER QUALIFICATION FORM

The offeror and his personnel shall meet the Experience and Personnel Qualifications as indicated in the Special Provisions of this bid. Please complete this form as fully and explicitly as possible to facilitate our evaluation of your firm. Use additional sheets and substantiating documents when necessary.

Dusinasa Lasatian.			
Business Location:		Street Address	
	City	State	Zip Code
Telephone No:		Fax No	o:
E-mail Address:			
Contact Person:		Phone	
		mergency calls during	regular workings hours (if differ
above): CONTACT INFORM Contact Person:	MATION IN CASE	E OF EMERGENCY – A	AFTER HOURS:
above): CONTACT INFORM Contact Person: Cell Phone No. of C	MATION IN CASE	E OF EMERGENCY – A	AFTER HOURS:
above): CONTACT INFORM Contact Person: Cell Phone No. of C	MATION IN CASE	E OF EMERGENCY – A	AFTER HOURS:
above): CONTACT INFORM Contact Person: Cell Phone No. of Contact No.: Contractor's number	MATION IN CASE Contact Person: er of consecutive nditioning and v	E OF EMERGENCY – A E-mail address: years of experience (inventilation equipment)	AFTER HOURS:
above):CONTACT INFORM Contact Person: Cell Phone No. of Contractor's number the field of air coincludes reciprocation.	MATION IN CASE Contact Person: er of consecutive nditioning and very ng chillers: er rendered by consecutive to the consecutive and th	E OF EMERGENCY – A E-mail address: years of experience (in the second	AFTER HOURS: mmediately prior to bid opening maintenance and repair services similar or equal to public office.

II. List at least three (3) journeymen refrigeration/air conditioning mechanics who will be assigned to this contract to perform air conditioning and ventilating maintenance/repair work. Each mechanic must have a minimum of five (5) consecutive years (immediately prior to bid opening) of maintenance and repair experience on types of equipment as indicated in the Specifications. Each journeyman mechanic shall have a refrigerant universal certification classification as indicated in the

Specifications. 1. Journeyman Mechanic's Name: _____ Number of years of experience: a. b. Number of years with present employer: ______ c. Title of and date that course of studies completed: Names and Dates of previous employers the mechanic worked for and performed centrifugal/screw chiller maintenance/repair: **Employers** Dates Journeyman Mechanic's Name: ____ 2. Number of years of experience: a. b. Number of years with present employer: ______ c. Title of and date that course of studies completed: d. Names and Dates of previous employers the mechanic worked for and performed centrifugal/screw chiller maintenance/repair: <u>Dates</u> **Employers** 3. Journeyman Mechanic's Name: _____ Number of years of experience: ______ a. b. Number of years with present employer: ______ c. Title of and date that course of studies completed:

d. <u>Names</u> and <u>Dates</u> of previous employers the mechanic worked for and performed centrifugal/screw chiller maintenance/repair:

	<u>Dates</u>	<u>Employers</u>	
assist minim maint mech pneur	the journeymen refund the fourneymen refundation that the fourne the fourne the fourne the fourne the fourne the fourne the fourne the fourne t	ration/air conditioning mechanics that will be assigned to this confrigeration/air conditioning mechanics. Each mechanic must secutive years (immediately prior to the bid opening) of air contence on types of equipment as indicated in the Specifications occessfully completing/(ed) a course of study in the field of temperefrigeration systems and have a refrigerant universal cerefrigeration.	have anditioning s. Each erature or
1. M	echanic's Name:		
a.	Number of years of e	experience:	
b.	Number of years with	th present employer:	
C.	Title of and date that	t course of studies completed:	
d.	List types of experier	ence:	
	<u>Dates</u> <u>Building/Loc</u>	cation Experience Contact Person Phone	
2. M	echanic's Name:		
a.	Number of years of e	experience:	
b.	Number of years with	th present employer:	
C.	Title of and date that	t course of studies completed:	
d.	List types of experier	nce:	
	Dates Building/Loc	cation Experience Contact Person Phone	

IV. REFERENCES

Ш.

Offeror shall list at least five (5) references in the State of Hawaii other than the State of Hawaii government, for whom offeror has performed a total coverage mechanical maintenance service of air conditioning and ventilating equipment and temperature control systems on a regular basis, that is similar in nature (<u>full service guaranteed maintenance services</u>) and volume (<u>annual dollar value for the five combined referenced contracts shall be equal to or greater than \$100,000.00 per year</u>) to the services specified in this bid, that will qualify offeror to perform the project.

The State reserves the right to reject a bid submitted by any offeror whose performance on other jobs for this type of service has been proven unsatisfactory.

Name of Firm	<u>Address</u>	Contact Person	<u>Telephone</u>	Project Vol.
1.				
<u>2.</u>				
3.				
4.				
<u>5.</u>				
	Tota	Combined Annual Pro	ject Volume: \$	